
 

 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: Extraordinary Meeting of the Licensing Committee 

Place: Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham, SN15 

1ER 

Date: Tuesday 5 November 2013 

Time: 2.30 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Lisa Pullin, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713015 or email 
lisa.pullin@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225)713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Desna Allen (Vice Chairman) 
Cllr Nick Blakemore 
Cllr Allison Bucknell 
Cllr Trevor Carbin 
Cllr Chris Caswill 
Cllr Sue Evans 

Cllr Jose Green 
Cllr Mike Hewitt 
Cllr Simon Jacobs 
Cllr George Jeans 
Cllr Leo Randall 
Cllr Pip Ridout (Chairman) 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Glenis Ansell 
Cllr Liz Bryant 
Cllr Ernie Clark 
Cllr Andrew Davis 
Cllr Bill Douglas 
Cllr Dennis Drewett 

Cllr Howard Greenman 
Cllr Jon Hubbard 
Cllr Magnus Macdonald 
Cllr Bill Moss 
Cllr Jeff Osborn 

 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. 

  
Apologies  

 To receive any apologies. 
 

2. 

  
Chairman's Announcements 

3. 

  
Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted 
by the Standards Committee. 
 

4. 

  
Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda 
item. Please contact the officer named above for any further clarification. 
 
Questions 
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution. Those wishing to ask 
questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named above no later than 5pm on Tuesday 29 October 2013. 
 
Please contact the officer named on the first page of this agenda for further 
advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that 
the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members 
prior to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s 
website. 

5. 

  
Setting of Fees - Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 This report recommends a fee structure for the licensing of scrap metal dealers 
within the Wiltshire Council area under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 



 

 

6. 

  
Dates of Future Committee Meetings  

 Members are asked to note the future meetings of the Licensing Committee, all 
to commence at 10.30am: 
 
Monday 2 December 2013 – venue tbc 
Monday 3 February 2014 – venue tbc 
 

7. 

  
Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business, which in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency. Urgent items of a confidential nature may be 
considered under Part II of this agenda. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



CM09519/F 

Wiltshire Council       
 
Licensing Committee  
 
5 November 2013 
 
 

 
Subject:  Setting of Fees – Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 

 
Cabinet Member:  Councillor John Thomson – Deputy Leader and Cabinet  
   Member for Highways and Streetscene and Broadband 
 

 
Summary 
 
This report recommends a fee structure for the licensing of scrap metal dealers within 
the Wiltshire Council area under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 
  

 
 

 
Proposal 
 
That the Licensing Committee considers the fee structure and sets fees at: 
 

• £350 for a Collector’s Licence 

• £500 for a Site Licence 
 
The licence fee to cover a three year period with these fees to take immediate effect. 
 

 
 

 
Reason for Proposal 
 
This proposal allows the Council to recover its costs in undertaking its licensing 
duties under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013.   
  

 
 

 
Mark Smith 
Service Director for Neighbourhood Services 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



CM09519/F 

Wiltshire Council       
 
Licensing Committee  
 
5 November 2013 
 

 
Setting of Fees – Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 

 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. To recommend a fee structure for the administration of scrap metal licensing 

programme. 
 
Relevance to the Council’s Business Plan 
 
2. The process of controlling and licensing scrap metals dealers assists the Council 

in achieving two of the six outcomes in the Business Plan 2013-2017.  
 

• Everyone in Wiltshire lives in a high quality environment 
• People are as protected from harm as possible and feel safe. 

 
Background 

 
3. Metal theft is one of the fastest growing crime types internationally. This is 

noteworthy because most industrialised countries have witnessed general 
reductions in acquisitive crime over the last decade. Precise estimates on the 
extent of metal theft nationally are difficult to obtain because of the absence of a 
designated metal theft crime category. The British Home Office estimates that 
there were around 100,000 police recorded metal thefts in 2010/11. According to 
British Transport Police recorded crime data, the levels of copper cable theft 
have increased rapidly from 2005/06 to 2010/11. 
 

4. The Scrap Metal Dealers Act (2013) gives the statutory responsibility to manage 
and administer the licensing of scrap metal dealers to local authorities. 

 
5. Every scrap metal dealer will be required to have a licence and operating without 

one will be a criminal offence. Under the new legislation the definition of scrap 
metal dealers is extended so it now includes motor salvage operators.  
 

6. Councils will be able to refuse to grant a licence where the applicant is judged 
not to be a suitable person to operate as a scrap metal dealer. 

 
7. The new regime commenced from 1 October 2013 with a transitional period 

running until 1 December 2013.  During this transitional period any scrap dealers 
already registered under the old regime, who register for the new regime before 
15 October 2013, will be granted a deemed licence until the end of the 
transitional period. 

8. The 2013 Act creates a fee raising power, to allow local authorities to recover the 
costs stemming from administering and seeking compliance with the regime. 
 
 
 

Page 2



CM09519/F 

9. It is proposed that the fees for scrap metal dealers be set as follows: 
 
 Collector’s Licence: £350 
 Site Licence: £500 

 
10. Each licence will last for three years, unless revoked by Wiltshire Council. 

Wiltshire Council will only revoke a licence where the licence holder’s 
circumstances change so that they may no longer be considered a fit and proper 
person. 

 
11. The proposed fee structure places Wiltshire Council broadly in line with Bath & 

North East Somerset (BANES) (Site Licence £639, Collector’s Licence £542) 
and Southampton City Council (Site Licence £450, Collector’s Licence £300).  

 
12. The legislation obliges the authority to review its fees after twelve months, at 

which point any anomalies or inaccuracies can be accounted for and amended. 
 
Safeguarding Implications 
 
13. Failure to effectively licence scrap metal dealers leaves vulnerable people 

unprotected from illicit scrap dealers who may make unsolicited visits to 
residential properties, prospecting for scrap metal. 

 
Public Health Implications 
 
14. Past incidents have shown statutory undertakers, and in particular hospitals, to 

be at particular risk of attack from metal thieves. The implications of such an 
attack on health could be direct, such as disruption to a hospital power supply or 
emergency switchboard operation, or indirect such as to affect transport signals 
or power supply to private housing. 
 

15. The provision to make sure that only licensed scrap metal dealers can deal in 
scrap metal should help to limit theft of scrap metal overall which would hopefully 
reduce injury associated with this activity, i.e. falls from roofs, and hazards such 
as electricity pylons, etc. 

 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 
16. There are no direct environmental impacts of setting the fees; however, the 

process of managing scrap metal dealers in line with the Act will ensure that 
dealers are operating within the legal framework. 

 
Equality Impact of the Proposal  
 
17. The impact of these proposals is assessed as `low` against the Council’s 

statutory responsibilities. 
 
Risk Assessment 

 
18. Failure to set a fee structure would result in the Council not recovering its costs 

in dealing with its obligations under the Act. 
 

Page 3



CM09519/F 

19. This could in turn risk legal challenge or complaint from dealers who would be 
unable to apply for a licence to trade legally. 

 
Financial Implications 

 
20. The fees will generate a small amount of income, dependant on the number of 

licences issued; however, the licence covers three years from date of issue. 
 

21. The fees generated from the licensing of scrap metal dealers represent a new 
income stream to the Council. This income stream will be factored into the 
Council budget as part of the 2014/15 budget setting process. 
 

22. The fees will be reviewed after a 12 month period. This will allow the licensing 
fee to be adjusted to comply with any future fees and charges policy of Wiltshire 
Council.  
 

23. The Council resource to administer the licensing will come from existing staffing 
and supply and services budgets. There will be no requirement for any budget 
growth to support the new licensing requirements.  

 
Legal Implications 
 
24. Failure to implement this regime will lead to all bona fide scrap dealers becoming 

technically unlicensed, thus allowing illicit scrap metal dealers to operate beyond 
effective detection and prevention. 

 
25. This would negate the positive impact the new legislation should have, in making 

it harder to transport and trade in stolen scrap metal. Indeed, it may even 
encourage an increase in metal theft as criminals seek to take advantage of a 
period of hiatus. 
 

26. The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 provides that each application for a scrap 
metal dealer’s licence will need to be accompanied by a fee set by the local 
authority (Section 5, Schedule 1, paragraph 6(1)).  
 
“Following implementation of Directive 2006/123/EC, Services in the Internal 
Market ("the Services Directive"), a licence fee can only be used to pay for the 
costs associated with the licensing process. This means that a local authority 
must ensure that the income from fees charged for each service does not 
exceed the costs of providing the service.  In setting the fee the authority must 
have regard to guidance issued from time to time by the Secretary of State for 
the Home Department.  These fees have been set in line with these legal 
principles and current guidance.”   

 
Conclusion  
 
27. There is a demonstrable need for the fees the Council proposes to charge for 

this service. 
 
28. The new legislation instructs us to calculate and levy charges sufficient to cover 

the cost of administering and ensuring compliance with the new regime. The 

Page 4



CM09519/F 

calculations in this document are accurate to the best of the Council’s knowledge 
of the prevailing factors. 

 
 
 
Mark Smith 
Service Director for Neighbourhood Services 
 
 

 
Report Author: 
Ian Brown  
Head of Environment Services 
Contact Details: ian.brown@wiltshire.gov.uk  

 
 
Background Papers 
 
Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 
LGA Guide to the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 
Scrap Metal Dealer Act 2013: Guidance on Licence Fee Charges 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Setting of Fees - Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

